
Please ask for  Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

Date & Time - TUESDAY, 9TH JUNE, 2009 at 2.00 pm 

Venue - The Norfolk Room, Committee Suite, Elizabeth 
House 

 
 

 
 
 

REPRESENTATIVE ORGANISATION 
Councillor William Nunn (Chairman) Breckland 
David Ovenden (Vice-Chairman) Dereham Area Partnership 
Mike Austin Norfolk Constabulary 
Debbie Bartlett Norfolk County Council 
Ian Clarke Eastern Daily Press 
Jonathan Clemo Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Andrew Egerton-Smith Norfolk PCT 
Supt. Katie Elliott Police 
Jan Godfrey Wayland Partnership 
John Gretton Norfolk County Council 
Andrew Heginbotham Norfolk Fire Service 
Trevor Holden Breckland 
Brian Horner Voluntary Norfolk 
Valerie Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Shirley Matthews Norfolk Association of Local Councils 
Jim Mullenger Iceni Partnership 
Dave Seaton Peddars Way Housing Association 
Neil Stott Keystone Development Trust 
Lucy Walker Learning Skills Council 
Caroline Williams Norfolk Chamber of Commerce 

 
Member Services     

Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Friday, 29 May 2009  
 

Public Document Pack



LSP Board 
9 June 2009 

 
 
 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

 

1. MINUTES  1 - 8 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on the 19 February 2009.  
 

 

2. MATTERS ARISING   

3. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

4. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent 
business.  
 

 

5. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  
 

 

6. SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY - PROJECT GROUPS 
UPDATE  

 

 To receive an update from Mark Fretwell, Breckland Partnership (LSP) 
Officer.  
 

 

7. PERFORMANCE REPORTING   

a) Pride in Breckland Project 9 - 14  

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2009. 
Rob Walker – Lead.  
 

 

b) Health & Wellbeing Project   

 Andrew Egerton-Smith – Lead.  
 

 

c) Economic Prosperity Project   

 Mark Stanton – Lead.  
 

 

d) Environmental Project 15 - 20  

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 1 April 2009. 
Jonathan Clemo – Lead.  
 

 

8. THETFORD HEALTHY TOWN PROGRAMME   

 To receive an update by Mark Taylor, Programme Director for Integrated 
Care & Market Development, NHS Norfolk & County Council.  
 

 



LSP Board 
9 June 2009 

 
 

9. PROJECT RAINBOW - WATTON  21 - 24 

 To receive a report and presentation by Julian Horn & Paul Adcock, 
Local Businessmen.  
 

 

10. LIBRARY SERVICES (ACHIEVING POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR THE 
COMMUNITY)  

 

 To receive a presentation by Sarah Hassan & Brigitte Morton, Library & 
Information Service.  
 

 

11. SKILLS ROAD MAP   

 To receive a presentation by Lucy Walker, Learning Skills Council (LSC).  
 

 

12. MIGRATION IMPACTS FUNDING  25 - 31 

 To receive an update from Mark Fretwell, Breckland Partnership (LSP) 
Officer.  
 

 

13. BUDGET   

 To receive an update on Partnership finances by Mark Fretwell.  
 

 

14. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   

 To agree items for inclusion on the next or a future agenda.  
 

 

15. FUTURE MEETINGS   

 To note that the next meeting of the LSP Board will be held on Thursday 
16 July 2009 at 2.00 pm in the Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Breckland 
Council.  
 

 



 
 
 

 

1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
 

Held on Thursday, 19 February 2009 at 2.00 pm in 
Anglia Room, The Committee Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr J.W. Nunn (Chairman) Breckland 
Mr D. Ovenden (Vice-Chairman) Dereham Area Partnership 
Inspector M. Austin Norfolk Constabulary 
Mr J. Dixon Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Mr A. Egerton-Smith Norfolk PCT 
Mr P. Elliott (In place of Ms D. Bartlett) Norfolk County Council  
Mrs J. Godfrey Wayland Partnership 
Inspector A. Hayes (in place of Supt. Elliott) Norfolk Constabulary 
Mrs V. Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Mrs S. Matthews Norfolk Association of Parish and 

Town Councils 
Mr J Mullenger Iceni Partnership 
Mr P. Seaman (in place of Mr A. Heginbotham) Norfolk Fire and Rescue Service 
Ms L. Walker Learning Skills Council 

 
 

In Attendance  
Mike Onassis - Pride Co-ordinator 
Mark Fretwell - LSP Officer 
Helen McAleer - Member Services Officer 
Mark Stanton - Head of Economic Development 
Mark Stokes - Strategic Director (Services) 
Robert Walker - Sustainable Communities Manager 

 
 Action By 

 
  
1/09 MINUTES   
  
 The minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2008 were agreed as 

a true record.  
 

  
2/09 APOLOGIES   
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Debbie Bartlett, Ian Clarke, 

Katie Elliott, Andrew Heginbotham, Trevor Holden, Brian Horner, Dave 
Seaton and Caroline Williams.  

 

  
3/09 SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY - OVERVIEW & PROJECT 

GROUPS UPDATE  
 

  
 Mark Fretwell gave an update on the SCS six priorities (Developing 

Safer & Stronger Communities, Improving Homes, Promoting & 
Developing a Thriving Economy, Improving the Health & Wellbeing of 
Local People, Ensuring the accessibility of all Services and 
Environmental Sustainability).  Project Groups had been set up for all 

 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 1

1



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 February 2009 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
but two.  The aim was to deliver priorities and provide an evidence base 
to prove that the Partnership was adding value. 
 
The Project Groups were meeting bi-monthly with reports to the LSP 
Board. Where there were cross-cutting links between the priorities and 
Project Groups these should be demonstrable and developed further. 
 
Partners were asked to let Mark know which Project Groups they would 
like to be involved with so that he could target e-mails to those that were 
interested.  
 
Project Groups Update would be a standing agenda item in future.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All  

  
4/09 PERFORMANCE REPORTING   
  

 (a) Pride in Breckland Project    

   
 Rob Walker told the Board that over 200 nominations had been 

received for the Pride Awards which would be presented at Lynford 
Hall on 20 March 2009.  A panel had met to decide the winners last 
week.   
 
A ‘Breckland’s Got Talent’ event would be held in the Memorial Hall in 
Dereham on Wednesday 25 February 2009 and all Partners were 
welcome to attend. 
 
The Clean-Up Campaigns and Arts Project had made a reasonable 
start but needed to gain momentum. 
 
With the support of £15,000 funding from the Fire Service the 
Community Rangers Scheme was being revitalised and would take a 
more pro-active role in future. 
 
Other events planned included improvements to the Queen Mother’s 
Garden in Dereham to mark its 25th anniversary and looking at ways 
to improve the lay-by at Roudham Heath. 
 
It was also hoped to mark St George’s Day (Thursday 23 April 2009) 
in some way and Partners were asked to put forward suggestions.  
 
A Partner suggested that there was enormous potential to involve the 
community but that the focus should be on bigger issues, such as 
Carbon reduction. 
 
Rob confirmed that this was one of the longer-term aims, together 
with improving the environment.  More community involvement was 
sought and Mike Onassis had been out meeting agencies, individuals, 
communities and groups.  He had also visited schools to encourage 
children to be more environmentally aware. 
 
The Chairman noted that most of the projects were being led by 
Breckland Council and asked the Partners to be more pro-active.  
There was money available (£35,000 per year) but the response had 
been disappointing and few projects were coming forward.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
All 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All 

   

2



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 February 2009 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

 

 (b) Health & Wellbeing Project    

   
 Andrew Egerton-Smith regretted that as Martin Seymour was 

unavailable he was unable to give an update. 
 
As Martin was leaving the PCT another representative would be 
invited to the next meeting to update the Board on the Falls 
programme.  

 

   

 (c) Economic Prosperity Project    

   
 Mark Stanton told the Board that the Economic Project Group had 

taken ownership of this project.  He would bring a full progress report 
on the Action Plan to the next meeting.  They were focussing on 
where to concentrate resources to maximise delivery. 
 
34 grants had been made by the BELA 2 Project for equipment, 
training, etc to help start up businesses.  This had been a very 
successful and over-subscribed project.  As such it had not been 
necessary to use the marketing budget.  Mark asked the Board to 
agree to the re-use of this money, together with the funds left over 
from the BELA 1 project.  He also asked for a further £5,000 allocation 
from the Board, to continue the work.  Match funding would also be 
sought from Breckland. 
 
Partners discussed the importance of being able to evidence the 
success of this Project and Mark Fretwell mentioned that they hoped 
to hold a networking event, such as a breakfast or lunch and invite all 
grant recipients to see how they were progressing and to offer further 
business advice. 
 
RESOLVED  
 

(1) that £5,000 funding be provided to continue the BELA 2 
Project; 

(2) that money remaining from the BELA 1 project and the 
marketing budget be re-allocated to the BELA 2 Project. 

 
Mark Stanton updated Members on the IT training arranged with 
Poultec in Mattishall.  15 hours of one-to-one training courses were 
booked for March, six delegates had already signed up. 
 
The UEA had also offered training at no cost working mainly with 
professionals and skilled people who had been made redundant. 
 
Mark Fretwell told the Board that £2,000 was set aside for ‘Train the 
Trainer’ and a meeting with CAB would take place next week to 
ensure the focus was targeted to provide consistent and professional 
advice across the district. 
 
Mark Fretwell also advised the Board that £5,000 was set-aside for 
Pre-ESOL (English as a Second Language).  The tender was out and 
a decision would be made on 2 March 2009.  This had a natural 
linkage to the ESOL training.   
 

 

3



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 February 2009 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
Reacting to the current climate two job fairs had been arranged in 
Dereham on 6 March 2009 and Watton on 1 April 2009.  Partners 
were asked for their help to promote these events (flyer attached). 
 
Finally, as part of the Pride Campaign, the BLISS (Breckland Local 
Independent Shop Stars) nominations were running with people being 
able to vote on-line (www.breckland.gov.uk/bliss_awards) and at 
publicity stalls being held in the market towns on market days.  
Currently 80 businesses had signed up to participate and others were 
added to the list as they put themselves forward.  Two awards would 
be presented at the Lynford Hall event on 20 March 2009, for Best 
Market Town Shop and Best Rural Shop.  

   

 (d) Thetford Healthy Town - Update    

   
 Rob Walker told Partners that the Project Initiation Document (PID) 

attached to the agenda represented stage one in the project planning 
process.  Delivery proper would start on 1 April 2009, which was one 
year into the project.  At that point the first £90,000 would be released.  
 
Currently a Project Manager was being recruited by the PCT.  They 
were the accountable body.  

 

   

 (e) Cohesion Pilot    

   
 The final report was being drafted and would be circulated to Partners 

for comment when it was available. 
 
No big problems had been found in the district, though there were 
some areas to improve on.   
 
There was an opportunity to take part in a Local Pathfinder Initiative to 
increase active citizenship.  This was not exclusive to migrant 
communities.  Rob Walker was keen to speak to colleagues to see 
how people could be encouraged to volunteer and take part in 
community projects.  

 

   
5/09 ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT GROUP   
  
 A pre-meeting had been held to identify the options available and these 

were listed in the report.  Most support at that meeting had been for the 
Eco-House which would be ‘virtual’ and had scope to link to the police, 
fire, health, etc. 
 
If done professionally this could reach lots of groups and involve 
Partners and other stakeholders such as the Utilities.  It was also an 
opportunity to train people to install green initiatives in homes and would 
meet a lot of Partner requirements. 
 
An initial quote was for between £6,000 and £8,000 to set this up.  Local 
businesses were willing to get involved.   Match funding might be 
available. 
 
Mark was also looking for involvement in Environment Awareness 
events to be held in the market towns between 14 and 18 April and on 

 

4



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 February 2009 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

 
dates to be confirmed in August.  If the website was up-and-running at 
that time the virtual house could be publicised at these events.   
 
Breckland Council was planning to sign up to the Nottingham 
Declaration by the end of March; this encouraged people to work 
together to tackle climate change.  Mark asked Partners what their 
commitment was to working in partnership to tackle climate change. 
 
Mark Fretwell sought agreement for a sum of money to be offered by 
the Board so that the Project Group could work out match funding and 
target spending.  However none of the Partners were able to make an 
offer of funds.   
 
The Chairman was concerned that almost no money was coming 
forward for projects apart from that provided by the Council.  He asked 
Partners to approach outside sources like Norwich Union, if necessary, 
to try to secure funding.  

  
6/09 LIBRARY SERVICES (ACHIEVING POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR THE 

COMMUNITY)  
 

  
 This item was deferred to a later meeting.   
  
7/09 SKILLS ROAD MAP   
  
 Lucy Walker apologised that she was not able to table the report at this 

time and it was therefore deferred to a later meeting.  
 

  
8/09 CLEANER, SAFER, GREENER CHARTER   
  
 This Charter was launched at the Council meeting on 29 January 2009 

and was fully endorsed by ENCAMS.   
 
A flyer would be sent to every household and there was a link to the 
Charter on the Breckland Council website.  The work was supported by 
Peddars Way Housing Association. 
 
There were a large number of agencies responsible for different 
services.  The list on page two was very helpful but needed to be 
updated regularly.  ENCAMS would come back on a six monthly basis 
to assist with reviewing the Charter. 
 
It was pointed out that there were actually five SNTs in Breckland, not 
four as quoted on page 4 and Mark Stokes agreed to change this.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MS  
  
9/09 RISK MATRIX AND WORKSHOP   
  
 Mark Fretwell had received some responses but urged all Partners to 

attend the Workshop on 23 March 2009 from 1.30 – 5.00pm in the 
Anglia Room, Conference Suite at the Council offices. 
 
The Risk Matrix had been adopted by Norfolk County Council as best 
practice.  It showed how to assess risk in terms of likelihood and impact 
and to manage risk; gave clear quantative evaluations and was easy to 
use. 

 

5



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 February 2009 

 
 

6 

 Action By 

 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

(1) note the contents of the report; and 
(2) adopt the proposed 3 x 3 risk scoring matrix to assess and 

prioritise LSP risks and the management of those risks.  
  
10/09 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK (LDF) AND SUSTAINABLE 

COMMUNITY STRATEGY (SCS)  
 

  
 Following the presentation to the last meeting, Mark Fretwell explained 

the links between the LDF and the SCS.  Both used the same evidence 
base and the LDF was required to give due regard to the SCS. 
 
There was a £326 million growth agenda and the LSP could be used to 
manage this and to ensure that growth contributed to the wider 
requirements of the district.   
 
Mark suggested that a separate group could be set up, involving the 
Utilities, to promote the growth agenda and to act as a fulcrum between 
the public agencies and the developers to co-ordinate the approach 
across the whole district.  He asked how the Board felt about this role. 
 
There was already a County-wide group and a Partner wondered if the 
Utilities would ‘buy-in’ at district level. 
 
Mark was asked to provide more information on how this would work by 
getting the Terms of Reference of the Huntingdonshire scheme and 
bringing another report to the Board.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MF  
  
11/09 COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT - NORFOLK LSPS 

SUMMARY  
 

  
 Mark Fretwell updated the Board on the findings of the Audit 

Commission.  He agreed with the points made; there were weaknesses 
but these could be built on.  There were also many positives to take 
from the report.   
 
The main points were that the people round the table were not able to 
make the decisions; and that there was a need to look at the bigger 
picture and not get bogged down in small projects. 
 
A Partner agreed that the decision makers were not at the meetings, but 
said that because of the structure of different organisations, senior 
managers were not available to attend. 
 
The Chairman agreed with this and asked Partners to write to the Audit 
Commission challenging the findings.  The Government targets were 
still there and the Commission needed to understand the difficulties 
experienced. 
 
Mark Fretwell said there was a need to develop better partnership 
working.  He suggested a Partnership website would be a good idea.  
He also felt that the structure, constitution and membership of the LSP 
needed to be looked at.  He wanted more LAA indicator leads involved 

 

6



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 February 2009 

 
 

7 

 Action By 

 
and a problem solving approach to tackle hard to reach targets 
collectively.  

  
12/09 BUDGET   
  
 There was currently £43,500 in the budget, of which £5,000 had been 

committed during the meeting. 
 
Pride campaign currently had about £90,000 uncommitted. 
 
News about Second Homes Council Tax was still awaited.  

 

  
13/09 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   
  
 It had already been agreed that the Skills Road Map (Agenda Item 10) 

would appear on a future agenda.  
 

  
14/09 FUTURE MEETINGS   
  
 The next meeting of the LSP Board would be on Thursday 14 May 

2009, at 2.00pm in the Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Breckland 
Council.  

 

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.37 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

7



Minute Item 4c

1 8



Pride Project Group  
Minutes

Date: 8 April 2009

Location: Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Dereham

Present: Mark Stokes – Breckland Council
Mark Fretwell – Breckland Council
Rob Walker – Breckland Council
Mike Onassis– Breckland Council
Sarah Bruton – Breckland Council
Shirley Matthews – Norfolk Association of Local Councils
Lisa Hilton – Breckland Council
Becky Jefcoate – Breckland Council
George Hayes – Dereham Area Partnership
Dennis Tallon –  Iceni Partnership
Paul Elliot – Norfolk County Council
Paul Seaman – Norfolk Fire Service
Jan Godfrey – Wayland Partnership
Val Jenkins – Police Authority
Laura Apps-Green – Breckland Council
Susan Glossop – Thetford Town Council
Helen McAleer – Breckland Council

Item   Notes Action

1. Welcome, Introduction and Apologies

1.1 Those attending introduced themselves and were welcomed 
to the meeting.

1.2 Apologies for absence were received from Andrew Egerton-
Smith, Mike Austin, Trevor Holden, Katie Elliott, Ian Clarke, 
Dave Seaton, Dave Hatherly & Claire Bailey.

2. Minutes Approval and Matters Arising

2.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2009 were 
agreed as a correct record.

2.2 Matters arising and action points would be dealt with as they 
arose in the agenda.

3. Pride Project Update

3.1 Thetford Bonfire Night

Susan Glossop explained that the Town Council were willing 
to take the lead but had no funding available.  A company 
had been provisionally booked to provide a display on 6 

Agenda Item 7a

9



Item   Notes Action

November 2009, pending fundraising efforts.  It had not been 
possible to raise the necessary money and therefore the 
event would not take place.  However a pyrotechnic company 
had been booked to provide a display on 7 November 2010.  
Funding sources needed to be found.

Paul Seaman said the Fire Service were willing to support 
and help at any event and confirmed that there was a lot of 
enthusiasm for the event.

The Town Council was to purchase 24 collecting tins to be 
placed around the town to try to raise money.  They were 
unwilling to fund the 2010 event as it was likely to become an 
annual occurrence and they could not take on such a long-
term responsibility.

3.2 Community Rangers

A re-launch of the Rangers scheme was due to take place in 
May/June.  A Newsletter was being sent out to all existing 
Rangers to give details.  It would also give a list of options for 
involvement in projects such as recycling, health walks, etc.

It was hoped that a link could be made to the new Youth 
Council and that this would encourage more young people to 
volunteer as Rangers.

The Core elements of the original scheme would be kept but 
the re-launch was aimed at attracting interest from a wider 
range of people.

The Community Ranger and Fire Service project to assist 
local communities by visiting people, giving advice and fitting 
smoke detectors, was currently under target.  There were 
now four Rangers involved and it was hoped to increase this 
to a minimum of ten.

Paul Seaman confirmed that the £15,000 funding was safe 
and would be available for 12 months.

The Group discussed ways of attracting more Rangers and it 
was decided that activity needed to be co-ordinated.  Rob 
Walker and Sarah Bruton would present an action plan to the 
next meeting.

Sarah Bruton
Rob Walker

3.3 Queen Mother’s Garden

This formal garden in the centre of Dereham had received 
joint funding of £5,000 and Serco had spent three weeks 
tidying and re-planting.  The Town Council were planning to 
plant bulbs in the Autumn.

Lots of positive comments had been received and the area 
would improve further as the planting matured.

Ideas were being sought for a replacement for the original 
centrepiece of the garden which had been removed due to 
vandalism.  Local High Schools had been invited to submit 
designs.  Mark Fretwell suggested that a local artisan, who 
had received a Bela2 grant, might be approached to provide 
the centrepiece.

10



Item   Notes Action

3.4 Roudham Heath Lay-by

This was not a family friendly place and there was a need to 
make it more attractive generally.  Mike Onassis had 
attended a meeting with partners to discuss this with positive 
results.

Mark Stokes asked for another meeting to be held before the 
next meeting of the Group.

3.5 Youth Council Funding

£1,000 funding had been provided for the new Youth Council 
which was formed on 17 March 2009.   Mike Onassis was 
also hoping to fund disposable cameras to enable young 
people to carry out surveys in their areas of potential project 
sites.

3.6 National Volunteer Week

This was an additional item not on the agenda.

Mike Onassis had been in discussion with Voluntary Norfolk 
about the potential of holding a Road-Show during National 
Volunteer Week (1–7 June) to advertise the work of 
volunteers.

3.7 Finally, Mike informed the group of his decision to resign.  It 
had not been an easy decision and he thanked the members 
for all their support.

On behalf of the Council and the Group Mark Stokes thanked 
Mike for all that he had done and wished him well in the 
future.

4. Pride Awards

4.1 Laura Apps-Green told the Group that the ceremony at 
Lynford Hall had been very inspirational.

Approximately 180 nominations had been received and all the 
packs had been read by a panel of internal and external 
assessors.  It had been incredibly difficult to place the 1st, 2nd

and 3rd prize winners in each category.

Simon Weston had been a really good choice to present the 
awards.

Positive feedback had been received and people wanted the 
ceremony to be a regular event.  There had been a lot of 
publicity both in the news and on the TV.  There was also a 
big article with pictures in the latest Voice edition.

Mark Stokes confirmed that Members had agreed that the 
Staff awards would be an annual event and that the Pride 
Awards would be bi-annual.   This news was welcomed as 
the event had taken over six months to arrange.

On behalf of the group, Rob Walker thanked Laura for all her 
hard work.  He said it had been a steep learning curve for all.

Mark Stokes agreed and on behalf of the group extended 
thanks to Laura and the wider team and to the 

11



Item   Notes Action

Communications team.

5. BLISS

5.1 Becky Jefcoate said that over 80 shops had taken part and 
1,800 votes had been received.  She thanked the Group for 
their support.  The two overall winners had been presented 
with their awards at the Pride ceremony.  Individual Town 
shop winners would be visited over the next two weeks and 
presented with their prizes.

Becky was keen to raise the profile of all those businesses 
that took part.  They had all been invited to submit their 
profiles, details and photographs of their premises to be 
included in a mini on-line directory that would be linked to 
BOLD.

Banners were also being produced and would be given to the 
shops for displaying.

6. Norfolk Waste Funding

6.1 Sarah Bruton explained that Norfolk County Council were 
leading on this initiative to increase food waste collection and 
reduce landfill waste.  There had been a high profile media 
launch and there would be a number of Road Shows around 
the county – the dates for those in Breckland would be 
notified in due course.

Sarah asked the Partners to notify her of any projects which 
could be linked to this campaign.

Susan Glossop asked if the economic climate might lead to a 
reduction in food waste and Sarah said this was an 
interesting question and analysis would be carried out.

7. Migration Funding

7.1 Mark Fretwell told the Group that £3.5 million was available 
from GO East and he was currently putting a bid together.  

He was proposing a collection of projects to address a whole 
range of issues such as skills, community safety, 
homelessness and health.

Integration was at the heart of all the proposals which had to 
be submitted by 1 May 2009.

7.2 Rob Walker explained that the bid had to come from the LSP.  
The timescale was very tight but there was an opportunity for 
Partners to bring integration projects forward for inclusion.

Breckland had already committed resources to this subject by 
doing a joint report with GO East to identify the objectives and 
he hoped that they would reciprocate by providing funding to 
enable the projects to be carried out.

7.3 Mark Stokes urged Partners to get their ideas to Mark 
Fretwell as soon as possible.

12



Item   Notes Action

8. CCTV Update  

8.1 Mark Stokes told the Group that the legal details of the 
contract, which had been awarded to a company called 
Advance, were still being negotiated and he hoped they 
would be complete by the end of April after which an 
Implementation Plan would be brought to the Group.

9. Marketing Update  

9.1 Lisa Hilton referred to an Action requirement from the 
previous meeting and confirmed that all Town and Parish 
Councils had been contacted for an update of their e-mail 
addresses.  They would then be sent short versions of press 
releases that were relevant to their area for inclusion in 
Parish magazines, etc.

She asked Partners to give advance notice of projects if 
possible to allow prior-notification of events rather than 
always reporting retrospectively.

9.2 A member pointed out that as the Voice deadline was so 
long, it was often not possible to do this.

9.3 Rob Leigh had worked out the value of the coverage that had 
been given to Pride related press releases, in column inches 
and it had equated to about £9,000.  This proved the value of 
involving the press at an early stage in projects as they would 
then provide consistent coverage.

10. Future Agenda Items

10.1 Action Plan for Community Ranger publicity

Project Updates (including an update on the Fire 
Service/Ranger project)

De-brief on Volunteer Week

Feedback on Migration Bid

10.2 George Hayes mentioned that this year marked the 125th

anniversary of Dereham Town Football Club.  It was also the 
75th year of the Dereham Golf Club.  He felt that these 
milestones could be built upon to celebrate sport in the district 
leading up to the Olympics in 2012. 

A new Sports Development Officer would be starting in early 
May and Rob Walker suggested that George speak to him 
about this.

10.3 Mark Stokes asked Partners to let the Group know of any 
other clubs around the district that would be celebrating 
anniversaries or achievements.

10.4 Susan Glossop asked that if a buffet was provided when 
events were held, that it should contain healthy food.   Sarah 
Bruton said that she would be looking at buffets as part of the 

13



Item   Notes Action

Environmental Awareness Campaign.

10.5 Susan Glossop asked if bids could be made for projects as 
Thetford Town Council would like to organise a big sporting 
event.

Rob Walker advised her that money was available.  Bids 
could be made to the Group and depending on the amount 
requested, could be provided.  For larger amounts, if the 
Group endorsed the project an Action Plan would be 
required.

10.6 Sarah Bruton said that there had been a huge increase in 
community litter picks. 

Dennis Tallon asked if junior picks could be provided as 
children struggled with the full size picks. 

Sarah agreed to order them and more small fluorescent 
jackets as they were keen to involve children.

She also asked Partners to let her know of any areas that 
needed improvement, like the Queen Mother’s Garden, and 
these would be looked at.

11. Any Other Business

11.1 Mark Fretwell felt that more cohesion based initiatives were 
needed.  If the funding bid mentioned at Item 7 was 
successful he would be able to develop this theme.

He had been speaking to Claire Bailey (County Community 
Cohesion Officer) about this and he would invite her to attend 
the next meeting.

Meeting Closed: 11.20am 

14



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Breckland Partnership (LSP) 
‘ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT GROUP’ 

Minutes 
 
Date: 1 April 2009 

 
 

Location: Norfolk Room, Elizabeth House, Dereham  

 
Present: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mark Fretwell – Breckland Council (Chair) 
Sarah Bruton – Breckland Council 
Stephen Askew – Elected Member 
Claire Bowes – Elected Member 
Martin Mahony – Breckland Council 
Dominic Allen – Norfolk County Council 
Matt Wicks – Energy Savings Trust 
Jan Godfrey – Wayland Partnership 
Dennis Tallon –  Iceni Partnership 
Lucinda Leonard – Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Sylvie King – Breckland Council 

 

 

 

Item   Notes Action 
1. Welcome, Introduction and Apologies 

 
 

 Those attending introduced themselves and were welcomed 
to the second meeting of the LSP Environment Project 
Group.  Apologies for absence were received from Andy 
Heginbotham, Gordon Partridge, David Spencer, David 
Ovenden, George Hayes, Matthew Cross & Mark Stokes. 
 

 

2. Minutes approval & matters arising 

 

 

 It was agreed that the Minutes were recorded as a true and 
accurate account. 
 

 

3. LSP Board feedback 
 

 

 Mark provided feedback from the LSP Board meeting (Feb 
19th). The virtual eco-house was put to the Board as the most 
supported project from the Environmental Project Group. It 
was decided that further work is required to secure funding / 
match funding, as no partners present were willing or able to 
commit funding. An initial quote for £6,000 - £8,000 was 
provided. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

4. Environmental Sustainability & SCS 
 

 

 Mark recommended that now would be a good time for the 
group to start thinking about what it wants to achieve in the 

Mark 
Fretwell 

Agenda Item 7d

15



 

 

Item   Notes Action 
coming year by producing an action plan and strategy. A 
separate meeting is to be arranged to put an action plan and 
strategy together. A meeting to be arranged prior to the next 
Environmental Project group meeting. 
 
The strategy should link in with the National Indicators, NI 
186, NI 187 and NI 188 as well as the local development 
framework.  
 
Dominic advised there are possible quick wins around 
biodiversity and suggested liaising with Scott Perkin who is 
the County Bio-diversity Manager. 
 

 Sarah asked whether the group wanted to widen their scope 
by inviting other agencies such as Norfolk Wildlife Trust, 
Friends of the Earth, NFU and Chamber of Commerce to join.  
 
Mark agreed that it would be a good idea to develop further 
partner contacts. He also suggested involving local 
businesses, as well as Strattons Hotel in Swaffham, Garden 
Science Trust, and the Eco-Bugs (Wayland Community High 
school, Watton), `who were all recently nominated for a Pride 
award in the Greener Breckland category.  

 

ALL  
 
 
 

Mark 
Fretwell 

 Dominic spoke about health links and promoting public 
transport, walking and cycling. He also advised that he has 
been working with the public rights of way office at NCC, 
looking at ways to open up the countryside and to produce 
more healthy walks.  He recommended speaking to Peter 
Barber at NCC. 

 

 

5. Environment Strategy & Environment Weeks 

 
 

 Sarah advised that Breckland Council are planning 2 week 
long events to raise awareness of environmental issues.  The 
events will be held in each of the five market towns. 

 

 

 Spring Clean Week – 14th to 18th April 
The event aims to raise awareness of caring for the 
environment in which we live, and the work which is 
undertaken to keep our market towns clean and tidy.  The 
event will include: 

• An information stand  

• A perspex box to show visitors how much litter has 
been collected in their town/area. 

• Joint litter patrols with our Enforcement Officer and 
the PCSO’s 

• A reward scheme for those who dispose of their litter 
appropriately 

• A cigarette litter focus 

• A presence by our Cleansing Contractor Serco 

• Litter picking sessions with local cub scout groups 
working towards gaining their environment badge.  

 

 

 Energy Week – (dates to be confirmed) 
This week of events will aim to raise awareness of the ways 
in which we can all save energy. Ideas in discussion for this 

 
 
 

16



 

 

Item   Notes Action 
event are: 

• Information available on improvements which can be 
made to properties but also easy changes which do 
not have a cost implication 

• Providing grant/funding information 
 
The Energy Savings Trust is keen to get involved in the 
Energy Week and Matt advised that the energy bus would be 
available, although a driver would be required.  

 

 
 
 

 SB extended an invitation to all LSP Members to join these 
events.  If organisations would like to promote a particular 
environmental project or campaign of their own at these 
events prior notice will be required to ensure sufficient space 
can be managed. 
 

 

 Dominic mentioned the World Environment Day on 5th June 
as well as the Climate Change (small change, big difference 
week) in July and it was suggested that the Energy Week 
could tie in with this. 
 

 

 Environment Strategy 
 
Sarah advised that the year one action plan has now been 
completed. Year 2 themes have been changed and now 
focus on Energy, Waste, Transport, Procurement, Water, 
Natural Environment and Planning and Regulation.  
 
There is a focus this year on improving the environmental 
performance of Breckland’s internal performance, and also a 
number of community initiatives.  Sarah will circulate once 
finalised. 
 
Dominic spoke about the Carbon Trust Standard which was 
created to provide a clear and robust definition of good 
practice and for use as an independent endorsement of an 
organisation’s achievements in carbon reduction. 
The Carbon Trust with organisations to certify their 
performance in measuring, managing and reducing their 
greenhouse gas emissions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sarah 
Bruton 

6. Virtual Eco-House 

 
 

 Mark advised that whilst the LSP board hadn’t yet offered any 
funding for the project they would be willing to match fund 
anything we can get elsewhere.  
 
Mark requested that all partners investigate possible funding 
avenues and develop a funding report to be taken to the next 
LSP board, on 14th May. 

 

ALL 

 Jan advised that she had recently spoken with a local 
developer who showed interest in the project and asked for a 
separate meeting to be arranged with the developer to 
discuss further 

 

Jan Godfrey/ 
Mark 

Fretwell 

 Sarah spoke about her recent meeting with CRed - The  

17



 

 

Item   Notes Action 
Community Carbon Reduction Project based in the East of 
England. The CRed System is an online resource which 
provides the CRed community with information, advice and 
access to online tools to help them in their carbon saving 
efforts via the central website. CRed has developed a range 
of carbon auditing tools for use by business, households, 
schools and other organisations.  
 
Sarah advised that cost of joining CRed would be £45k. 
 
Some concerns were raised over the £45K cost and Matt 
suggested using the Energy Savings Trust as they may be 
able to provide similar assistance. 
 
Sarah/Martin to investigate CRed/EST offerings. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sarah 
Bruton/ 
Martin 
Mahony 

7. Nottingham Declaration 

 
 

 Mark Fretwell spoke about the declaration which recognises 
the central role of local authorities in leading society’s 
response to the challenge of climate change. By signing the 
Declaration councils pledge to systematically address the 
causes of climate change and to prepare their community for 
its impacts.  

Mark advised that the declaration is being taken to full council 
on 23rd April to be signed off for Breckland Council and invited 
partners to join Breckland in signing up. He suggested that 
this would be a good launch pad for the group and a good 
place to start publicity etc.  
 
Mark requested that Partners take this back and discuss with 
their members and feed back to him. He stressed that this 
needed to be done ASAP due to the timescales involved.   
 

ALL 

8. Energy Savings Trust – Overview 

 
 

 Matt explained that the EST is a national organisation, broken 
down into regions with advice centres that give free, impartial 
advice on energy saving.  

 

 

 Although they are more focussed on householders than 
businesses, EST do offer a one to one support programme 
for local authorities to help develop action plans and look at 
estate management. They are currently working with Norwich 
City Council. 
 
Sarah advised that Breckland Council are in the process of 
signing up to this. 

 

 

 Matt advised that the EST offers driver training to businesses 
at a cost of £25 pp (minimum 24 people). 
 
Dominic advised that NCC also offer this training, although 
was unsure of specific costs. 

 

 

18



 

 

Item   Notes Action 
 Dennis raised concerns regarding the honesty of money 

saving messages associated with fitting solar panels etc as it 
may actually take up to 40 years to see an actual saving.  
 
Dominic advised that the Carbon Trust website has full details 
of all the various options and the realistic savings associated 
with them.  
 
Matt also advised that the EST would always promote 
improvements such as insulation before considering solar 
panels etc. 
 
Martin recommended speaking to Breckland’s resident 
energy expert, Gordon Partridge, as he gives very honest and 
impartial advice. 

 

 Lucinda asked whether the Energy Savings Trust provide 
energy audits of Community centres, which they don’t at 
present. 
 
Sarah advised that this is the sort of service Breckland would 
very much like to provide and it is currently being investigated 
further.  

 

9. Funding & Future agenda Items 
 

 

 Dominic informed the group of £350K which is available 
through the Smart Cities programme - a project aimed to 
develop and set best practice in delivering council services 
using ICT. Dominic provided members of the group with an 
information sheet giving further details of the project. Tim 
Anderson and Louise Cornell at County are involved. 
 

 

 Dominic also advised the group of The Partnership for 
Renewables, which is an experienced team of renewable 
experts that work with public sector bodies to develop and 
manage renewable energy projects across the UK. There is 
half billion allocated to this project. 
 

 

 Mark summarised the possible funding avenues that had 
been discussed and reminded everyone to keep investigating 
other funding avenues. 

 

ALL 

 Mark gave the group his suggestions for future agenda items, 
which included a climate change workshop, a small rural 
village pilot study regarding carbon footprint, Rural Proofing 
Opportunities (retrofit).  
 

 

 Mark also suggested producing an information booklet, 
similar to the Cleaner, Safer, Greener charter with information 
and contact details regarding energy saving. This could be 
produced in house to reduce the costs involved.  
 

 

 Sarah advised that Breckland are currently working on a case 
study where 3 houses trial various energy saving gadgets. 
 

 

 Mark put forward a range of project ideas which were agreed 
as future discussion and/or agenda items: 

1. Climate change workshop 
2. Rural villages pilot study (carbon footprint) 

 

19



 

 

Item   Notes Action 
3. Information booklet (cleaner, safer, greener charter) 
4. Rural Proofing opportunities 
5. Providing simple energy saving advice 
6. Big Green challenge application (NRCC) 
7. Using a community as a pilot to educate on energy 

saving using peer pressure 
8. Bulk insulation / oil purchasing 
9. Community Power sourcing (micro-generation and co-

operative schemes) 
10. Community agriculture projects 
11. Schools – Energy audits / env. competition 

10. Any Other Business 
 

 

 Dominic recommended going to see ‘Age of Stupid’ - a film 
about Climate Change which is on at cinema city in Norwich 
on Monday 6th April at 8.30pm. 

 

 

11. Date of future meeting 
 

 

 Mark advised that the next meeting on 17th June may need to 
be changed as the housing team are not available on that 
date. Mark to advise once date has been confirmed. 
 

Mark Fretwell 

 The next  LSP Board meeting is on 14th May  
Meeting Closed 3.30pm 

 

 

20



BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

9 June 2009 
 

Report of Julian Horn & Paul Adcock (Directors, Project Rainbow) 
 

Project Rainbow 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To update the LSP Board Members on history, progress and current status of Project 
Rainbow and to summarise its impact in the Watton area. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 
 It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 
2.1 Note [for information purposes] the contents of this report. 
 
2.2 Consider ways the Board can support Project Rainbow to secure the future of the      

project 
 

 

3.  Background  

3.1 History 

3.1.1 Recognising the difficulties in engaging with young people some seven years ago, 
the then Town Council of Watton were instrumental in establishing a voice for local 
youth in the shape of the Wayland Youth Council. They have tried on a number of 
occasions to establish play areas and facilities in Watton but have often run into 
difficulties with local residents resisting such facilities in their immediate area for 
obvious reasons. This has led to frustration on the part of the Youth Council and has 
been the source of resentment by many young people of the area.  

 
3.1.2 In 2006 and 2007 members of the Youth Council with the aid of the Wayland 

Partnership and others attempted to provide a Kick Wall on the field to the rear of the 
Youth & Community Centre in Harvey Street. This was resisted by very vocal 
representatives of nearby residents and led to a great deal of unrest and bad 
publicity for all concerned. It was during this period that the seeds of Project 
Rainbow were sown.   

 
3.1.3 The Wayland Youth Council approached Mr Paul Adcock and Mr Julian Horn, both of 

whom were born and brought up in the town and trade on the High Street, to see if 
they could help deliver better facilities for young people. They recognised that there 
was never going to be a satisfactory outcome and radical thinking was needed.  

 
3.1.4 Some of the key points taken account of were:  
 

• Through lack of planning foresight and regulation in the past, development adjacent 
to the Youth Centre field has precipitated a situation that makes any kind of (noisy) 
play there likely to generate (not unreasonable) complaints and would never be 
acceptable to residents. 

• Children today generally are more sophisticated in the play needs and the “Youth 
Club” of the 1960’s and 1970’s is not so relevant today as it was. As a result the 
facilities at the Youth and Community Centre, however judged, are not fit for the 
needs of today’s young people.  

• Today’s young people often like to just “hang about” or “chill” and prefer to be at the 
centre of town where shops and businesses are located, leading to the perception of 
intimidating crowds and anti-social behaviour by shoppers and businesses. 

Agenda Item 9

21



• There was a strong feeling amongst the younger people that they were not being 
listened to and could see no benefit in engaging with the democratic process.  

 
Project Rainbow:  
 
3.1.5 Many months were spent developing a two pronged scheme to address the absence 

of both social and recreational facilities for young people who had expressed a strong 
desire for a Town Centre drop-in and a broad range of adventurous and exciting play 
activities based away from residential areas.  
 

3.1.6 The Project planned to purchase a former Doctors’ Surgery in the centre of Watton 
for adaptation into a drop-in centre. Located in an area where youngsters already like 
to hang around, its primary role is to provide a safe managed environment where 
young people can meet and socialise. 
 

3.1.7 On completion, the building will house a large meeting room for youngsters to 
socialise with a coffee shop atmosphere, a café serving refreshments, snacks and 
light meals, a games room with pool, table tennis and air hockey, a semi professional 
recording studio and band practice room, computer gaming, a small fitness room, 
make over room for girls, and two offices for external agencies such as Connexions 
and drugs advice to meet with young people in an environment they are comfortable 
with. 
 

3.1.8 The second prong was to construct a large activity centre, ‘The Barn’, on the outskirts 
of town. The internal design concepts of The Barn provided a flexible use facility for 
sports, the arts and recreational activities; some of which take place on the streets at 
present e.g. Skateboarding & BMX, and new opportunities such as roller and ice 
skating, climbing, caving, problem solving, performance arts, music and cinema. A 
key design feature is outdoor staging for summer evening concerts etc. 

 
Project Delivery 
 
3.1.9 It was planned to finance the bulk of the project through a land deal using the land 

held in trust and agreement to this was sought and obtained from the town, the 
Charity Commission and the Trustees. However the deal fell through as a result of 
the credit crunch which was then beginning to make itself felt. To compensate for 
this, a bid to the “myplace” fund appeared to be our best hope in a deteriorating 
economic situation.  
 

3.1.10 The myplace scheme aims to deliver world class youth facilities driven by the active 
participation of young people and their view and needs. It is not Lottery funding but 
money from central government administered by the Big Lottery Foundation.   
 

3.1.11 Considerable time, effort and expense was spent in developing what was generally 
considered to be a very strong bid to the government funded myplace scheme. An 
imaginative bid in the sum of £4.85m was prepared and submitted with the support of 
Breckland Council and Norfolk County Council but was ultimately unsuccessful. 
 

3.1.12 Whilst awaiting news of the myplace bid, in November 2008 the project team decided 
to lease the old surgery and start work on bringing the building into use. Some of the 
“target audience”, the young people who spent a great deal of their leisure time 
hanging around the High Street, worked incredibly hard in cleaning and clearing the 
building which had stood empty for well over a year. 
 

3.1.13 A bid to the ‘Awards for All’ fund for just under £10,000 was successful and paid for 
much equipment and furniture, while money raised locally was used to repair and 
bring the building up to a standard suitable for its intended use.   

 

22



 

3.2 The Present Situation 

 
3.2.1 An SLA with Norfolk County Council’s Children Services has allowed us to open 2 

nights a week (Monday and Thursdays) with two professional youth leaders and 3 
volunteers in attendance each evening.  

 
3.2.2 Since opening, attendance has been averaging 30 to 40 young people each of the 

two nights we are open. Those attending can enjoy pool (2 tables), table football, 
table tennis, Wii video games, and Karaoke. The original waiting room is now a large 
meeting room with good quality leather furniture and tables where users can “chill” 
with their friends while watching music television on a wall mounted large screen TV. 
There is a tuck shop serving the usual refreshments and games such as monopoly 
and cards etc. (which surprisingly are used!) 
 

3.2.3 The young people are also working on bringing a fitness and makeover room into 
being as well. In addition they have organised litter picks and have formed 
themselves into a focus group to take forward ideas for fundraising and interacting 
with older generations. 
 

3.2.4 On Wednesday 13th May, we launched the “Not so young as we used to be youth 
club” for older generations to make use of the facilities during the day. This is the 
prequel to a longer term plan to bring old and young together in an environment that 
is familiar and comfortable to them both. 
 

3.2.5 The Wayland Youth Council have been brainstorming ideas for intergenerational 
activities and the following suggestions have been put forward already: 
 
 “Young people helping the older to understand. . . 
1. How to use a mobile phone 
2. Social Networking (Facebook – MSN) this way they can keep in contact  
3. Computing 
4. Getting together with digital cameras 
  
The older people could help the young 
1. Cookery – my lot love baking and are always trying to ice cakes but could benefit 
from being shown properly 
2. Old traditional recipes, that mum couldn’t teach them 
3. Flower arranging, young girls seem to be interested in this 
3. Bowls – Unbelievably young people who have a go like it 
4. Teach the young people old dances such as the jive, jitterbug, and twist (as 
advisors not demonstrators) 
  
Classes they could do together – suitable activities for both 
Jewellery Making 
Pottery 
  
Finally if there were an old retired music teacher amongst the older generation, 
somebody who was used to working with kids - wouldn’t it be cool to have a modern 
day choir (like the sister act film) backing tracks could be used instead of 
instruments, and they could go out to events on behalf of the Surge.” 
 

3.3 The Future 
 

3.3.1 At present we have a facility that is, by any judgement a great success and which 
has enjoyed the support of many agencies. Without doubt it has made, and is 
making, a difference to the lives of many of our most challenged – and challenging - 
young people.  
  

23



3.3.2 We still need to secure the building and raise money to improve the facilities on offer 
and increase our opening hours. In these difficult economic times, Breckland and 
Norfolk Council have only very limited resources and no money to be used as capital 
funding for the project. At present most of the resources of the Lottery are being 
directed towards the 2012 Olympics.  
  

3.3.3 We had hoped is to submit another, reduced and reshaped but much improved, bid 
to a planned second round of the myplace fund. Unfortunately in May this year, 
when details of the second round were announced, it became clear that most of 
Norfolk was to be excluded from bidding, leaving us with very few options. 
 

3.3.4 We still have the original vision and the continuing and overwhelming support of the 
community and we believe this is a project worthy of support. At this time we are 
urgently exploring ways of securing the building which will cost in the region of 
£350,000 but we also want to take the building to a world class youth facility. 
 

3.3.5 We have learned the lessons of the failed bid to myplace and we want to produce a 
bid package of exceptional quality to take to potential funders. To help us in this we 
have approached a design agency; ADP Projects (see presentation slides) for help 
in bringing together a design package.  
 

3.3.6 They have proposed to us a programme of work to help us create that design but the 
cost is around £5,500. We think that we may need to spend another £2,000 to 
complete the job properly. Their track record is one of exceptional design and our 
initial consultations with them have led us to believe they can help us achieve our 
aims.  

 

4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

 

4.1 Through Project Rainbow, the young people of Watton and the surrounding villages need 
the support of the LSP Board to help secure the future of the Surge by showing they 
have built partnerships and are recognised as a serious force.  

4.2 By delivery of the project the team expect to reduce anti-social behaviour, improve cross 
generational activities and relationships and bring about an overall reduction of crime in 
Breckland both immediately, but more importantly, in the future by helping turn young 
people away from activities that will inevitably lead them into a lifetime of crime.   

 

 

24



APPLICATION FOR GRANT: MIGRATION IMPACTS FUND   

GO Region EAST 

Accountable Body  Breckland District Council 

Organisation responsible for delivery if 
different   

The Breckland Partnership (Local Strategic Partnership) 

Project detail 

Project title Managing the impacts of migration: A mobile solution for 
transitional rural communities (Breckland) 

 
Project Objectives 

Project Summary 
The principal objectives of this innovative proposal are to strengthen the integration of new and migrant communities and 
improve the ability of such groups to access to services from public, private and voluntary sector bodies.  Managing the 
Impacts of Migration: A Cross-Government Approach sets out the Government’s commitment to maximising the benefits of 
in-migration and mitigating the social impacts than can accompany the arrival of significant new communities.  This 
proposal presents a portfolio of projects that together will help achieve these commitments at a local level: achieving better 
access to services and subsequent opportunities for new communities; embedding ‘integration’ within the delivery of a 
community engagement programme, which promotes sense of belonging and meaningful interaction amongst all 
communities. 
 
This proposal is based – in part – on the ‘INTI One-Stop-Shop Project: A New Answer for Immigrant Integration’ project 
(www.oss.inti.acidi.gov.pt).  This initiative has been successful in other European countries, bringing together public, private 
and voluntary services and creating new services that cater specifically for the arrival of newcomers and the needs of more 
settled migrants.  
 
The proposal made here can be readily linked to projects in the voluntary sector around the provision of advice, information 
and guidance to migrant communities.  Taking as an example the Portuguese experience, the participation of community 
mediators is fundamental to project success.  The mediators guarantee not only a cultural and linguistic proximity to each 
migrant accessing the services of one-stop citizen shops, but also provide an essential link between public services and 
migrants.  
 
The proposed project has four key elements (further detail will be provided on each element in subsequent sections of the 
proposal): 
 
1. Citizen’s Shop and Mobile Bus  - Thetford, rural and market town access and employers, school, road shows.  
2. Training and Skills –  service connectors / dual training - both staff and communities / volunteering / Pre-ESOL  
3. Communication – translation materials  /multi-community forum / positive PR / myths and legends 
4. Community Engagement –  arts / sports / schools and young people 
 

 Breckland’s Profile 
Breckland is a large rural district in central Norfolk covering an area of over 500 square miles. It takes its name from ‘The 
Brecks’, which is a unique landscape with a habitat of sandy heath, forest and arable farmland found in the west and south 
of the district. Breckland contains 21 per cent of all Sites of Special Scientific Interest found in the East of England; and over 
50 separate conservation areas. Just under half of the population lives in the many dispersed villages and hamlets found in 
the 108 rural parishes, with the remaining 53 per cent of the population living in the district’s five towns of Thetford, 
Dereham, Attleborough, Swaffham and Watton.  
 
According to the 2001 census, the population in Breckland was 121,418, with a predicted aggregated population growth of 
five per cent by 2012. In the 2001 census, 95.27 per cent of residents in Breckland classed themselves as White British. 
The largest other ethnic group identified in the census was the Other White group at 2.67 per cent (3,242 people) with all 
other ethnic groups recorded as being well below one per cent. The latest Office of National Statistics population estimates 
(June 2006) suggest an increase in population in Breckland to 128,300, with the share of the population who are White 
British decreasing to 92.1 per cent and the Other White population increasing to 4.1 per cent (5,200 people). 
 
Breckland has established and significant patterns of in-migration from EU countries. 
 

 Best Practice 
Breckland has a proven track record of working with migrant communities and is recognized as having an innovative 
approach to building stronger integrated communities.  The district was selected as the first area to host a ‘Specialist 
Cohesion Team’ and positive steps have already been taken to implement the proposals set out in the recently published 
‘Specialist Cohesion Team Report’.  This proposal is informed by this work and report, in addition to the shared commitment 
of DCLG, GO East and Breckland Council to deliver its recommendations. 
 
Breckland is well placed to deliver a holistic and coordinated response to in-migration and become a model of best practice 
for other areas to build on. Existing best practice examples include: -  
 
‘Pride in Breckland’ campaign  
Launched in 2008, the Pride in Breckland campaign is designed to increase a sense of belonging and pride across all 

Agenda Item 12

25



communities in the district. The campaign is being delivered by the Breckland Partnership and significant Area Based Grant 
funding was committed by Breckland Council over a three-year term.  Recent achievements include: - 
 

• Breckland Youth Council - 20% of young people voting in the first democratic election. 

• Inaugural Pride in Breckland Awards to celebrate communities’ unsung heroes  

• Breckfest - cultural and music festival attended by 2,000 people to mark handover of Olympic Games 2012. 
 

Breckland Housing Team 
The Breckland Council Housing Team is recognised regionally for its best practice work with migrant communities.  Recent 
work includes: - 
 

• Lead role on Housing and Support Needs of ethnic minority communities in Norfolk  

• A dedicated Community Liaison Officer (Portuguese speaker) who carries out outreach and liaison work with a range of 
ethnic minority voluntary and community sector groups and residents 

• Developing a Community Leadership Programme to train and develop the capacity of local people to act as informal 
community advisors 

• Acts as the sub-regional lead on the Housing Equality and Diversity Group 
 
This proposal will provide a welcome opportunity to build on these significant achievements and the long standing 
commitment to work with migrant communities.   In Breckland, it is understood that: 
 

• There is a need for strong local leadership. Diversity needs to be welcomed and celebrated not just for its economic 
impacts but also for wider social benefits. Effort should be spent on building links between existing communities and 
developing a ‘sense of belonging’ among our new communities 

• A partnership approach is essential to achieve strong coordination between the public/private/voluntary sector bodies in 
delivering key services and in taking the lead on migration issues. Responsibility for cohesion issues should be part of a 
shared agenda 

 
 The Breckland Partnership (LSP) 

This proposal is submitted by Breckland Council on behalf of the Breckland Partnership (LSP).  All partners are committed 
to the delivery of this project and a partnership meeting has been held recently to steer the development of this submission. 
 
Good practice - The Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) provides a clear vision that welcomes new arrivals and 
supports existing communities “We want everyone who chooses Breckland as a place to live or work, to meet their 
aspirations and enjoy an excellent quality of life.” The Partnership regards cohesion and migration as a high priority; two of 
the four Project Boards address cohesion and it is identified as a cross-cutting theme within the SCS. The Partnership is in 
a strong position to develop further and it has the ability to effectively engage with the migrant communities and to 
encourage integration. Adding Value is an essential component of all project incorporated in this proposal. 
 
Governance arrangements – The Breckland Partnership has a constitution and terms of reference and is committed to an 
evidence based approach to managing and driving forward performance so that agreed outcomes are achieved. The 
alignment of its performance management arrangements to the SCS enables the Partnership to measure and manage 
progress on a comprehensive basis. The delivery of value for money and ensuring that the expected outcomes are 
delivered is paramount.  
 
Key partners – Public, private, community and voluntary sectors are brought together to tackle multi-faceted problems 
which require a wide range of responses from different bodies. Board voting members include Police, Fire, PCT, Peddars 
Way Housing (RSL), EDP (press), LSC, Norfolk County Council, Norfolk Chamber of Commerce, Area Partnerships, 
Voluntary Norfolk, NRCC and The Police Authority and Assoc. of Town and Parish Councils. 
 

 Issues and Evidence 
  

Number of migrants - Breckland is the destination for 30% of all economic migrants entering Norfolk from A8 countries. 
Between Jan 2002 – June 2008 there were 6,690 NI number registrations 2,110 (Poland), 1,950 (Portugal) 710 (Lithuania) 
and 290 (Latvia). A number of rural areas traditionally not accustomed to migration have particularly low levels of cohesion 
including Breckland. 
 
National Indicator 1 – % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area; 
Breckland 62.8 % score (National average 79 %), this placed Breckland as 13

th
 worst out of 387 in the country (Ipsos Mori) 

and 68.4 % score (Place Survey) making it the 2
nd

 lowest district score in Norfolk. 

 

Growth agenda – As highlighted above, the 2001 census returns very high levels of White British residents Breckland at 
95.27%. However, the latest Office of National Statistics population estimates (June 2006) suggest an increase in 
population in Breckland to 128,300, with the share of the population who are White British decreasing to 92.1 %  and the 
Other White population increasing to 4.1 % (5,200 people). Thetford was recently awarded ‘Growth Point’ status which 
means the town will see considerable housing (6000), population and economic growth (5000 jobs) over the next twenty 
years. 

 

Specialist Cohesion Team report - Recognising the council’s innovative approach to building stronger integrated 
communities, Breckland was selected to host the first Specialist Cohesion Team. The aim of this national pilot was primarily 26



to share good practice, identify what is working well in Breckland; where there are gaps in provision; and where sharing 
good practice from elsewhere might fill these gaps. The outcome of this collaborative work was a jointly authored report 
between the Department for Communities and Local Government and Breckland (with support from GO East), and reflects 
a determination at national and local levels to build resilient communities which are equipped to meet future challenges of 
in-migration and are characterised by a shared sense of belonging and purpose.  
 
The Specialist Cohesion Team report highlighted that resources in the voluntary sector for services to migrants were limited 
and dependant on the funding cycles. This meant that it was hard to provide consistent services to meet the continuing 
needs of migrants with respect to learning English and advice on a range of services such as housing, employment rights 
and immigration issues. Self-organizing migrant worker support groups also said that the lack of resources limited their 
ability to provide a range of services.  
 

 The Proposals 
  
1. Citizen’s Shop and Mobile Bus  
 
Description: The focus of this overarching project is to drive integration through the improved access to services for all 
sections of the community. The Citizen Shop will be open 2 days a week in Thetford as the principal retail, service and 
employment centre in the south of the district. The Citizen Bus (vehicle in place) will be fully equipped with all relevant 
translated information and IT equipment and will be mobile 3 days a week across the district to the other 4 market towns 
and rural communities. The Citizen Bus will also offer an outreach facility for homeless persons and will visit key locations 
such as employers, partner agencies, schools and road-show events. The staffing will consist of a Manager/Trainer and 4 
trained ‘Service Connectors’ with representation from Breckland Council, Norfolk County Council, Peddars Way Housing 
and community representatives. The opening times will be aligned to match the needs of the migrant workers and local 
communities therefore, evenings and weekends will form an essential part of the service. The service connectors will be 
highly trained to handle a wide range of issues including legal, business, employment, housing, crime and safety, tax, and 
appropriate signposting will be carried out where necessary. The Citizen Shop and Bus will connect up with the relevant 
consulates and resolve the lack of information available before migrants arrive in UK. This is an issue affecting service 
delivery - although there is some helpful information for migrant workers; many studies highlighted the fact that there is not 
enough to help them before they arrive in the UK. 
 
The project links directly to the SCS priority of ‘Improving Access to Services’ where hard to reach and marginalized groups 
exist across geographical communities of interest in the Breckland area’. The integration of some migrant communities has 
already taken place.  However, there needs to be further integration of those that are vulnerable and those that are living in 
rural isolation who remain on the periphery in particular, which this project will deliver in an innovative and integrated 
manner. 
 
As highlighted earlier, this proposal is based on the ‘INTI One-Stop-Shop Project: A New Answer for Immigrant Integration’ 
project (www.oss.inti.acidi.gov.pt).   
 
Cost - £400,000 
Lead partner – The Breckland Partnership (LSP) 
Key partners –  Breckland Council, Peddars Way Housing (RSL), Keystone Trust, META,  Norfolk Cohesion Network, Area 
Partnerships, CAB, Job Centre Plus, Norfolk County Council, Voluntary Norfolk, Norfolk Rural Community Council, Migrant 
Employers, Community Leaders. 
 
2. Training and Skills  
 
Description: The training and skills project will be dual focused on both staff and communities:  
 
Training for all front-line staff including council staff, partner agencies, public bodies (Police, Fire and PCT). Training will 
be focused on positive interaction, understanding different cultures, basic language skills, and effective signposting. In-
depth training will be provided for the ‘Service Connectors’ as detailed in Project 1 to form the core Service Connectors 
team who deliver at the Citizen’s Shop and Bus.  
 
Roles and responsibilities training for all communities to increase their understanding of what is acceptable behaviour, 
basic employment rights to include exploitation and discrimination, fire safety, road safety, domestic violence, petty crime,  
and crime reporting procedures etc. 
 
Volunteering there will be a programme with organisations to assist them in taking on volunteers, providing them with 
training to ensure that they are able to be welcoming and supportive of volunteers from diverse backgrounds. This project 
will link directly to the ‘Active Citizenship’ programme as detailed in the ‘Path To Citizenship.’ 
 
Pre-ESOL, ESOL and non-accredited English classes across the district. Tailored language courses will be provided 
that are relevant to the migrant learners needs. A blend of English and the native language will be used to ensure 
understanding with materials in key languages.  
 
Interactive Learning Resource to improve customer service and raise the awareness of migrant worker issues across 
partner organisations. An E-learning tool and DVD that is produced and facilitated by the Community Champions identified 
through this project together with local schools and youth groups and Breckland Youth Council.  The project builds on best 27



practice from Kings Lynn and West Norfolk. 
 
Cost: £70,000 
Lead partners – Breckland Council, CAB, Voluntary Norfolk, GMB Union 
 
3. Communications  
 
Description – The focus is to provide better quality translated materials in both paper and e formats - to highlight the 
contribution and benefits that migrant communities bring and to provide a forum to increase our understanding and for their 
voices to be heard. 
 
Local Multi Community Forum: discreet funding for a range of projects and events inc. data gathering, events, and 
voluntary and community sector capacity building. Breckland’s strategic plans for tackling cohesion and migration issues 
would be fed into discussions with the Community Cohesion Network to inform joined-up working with the County remit. 
The forum will act as a co-coordinating role for the migration projects ensuring professional delivery, outcomes, and an 
evaluation report for each project. Community representatives would form a key partner.  
 
Myths and Legends: will be challenged through posters, adverts, articles and a promotional campaign which will also 
signpost migrants to appropriate agencies. Challenging and changing perceptions is crucial to delivering integration and 
cohesion. It is fundamental to define, test and then change perceptions of both individuals and groups. It will develop a 
more formal mechanism for addressing local media coverage which may reinforce negative stereotypes of local migrant 
communities. In addition, there is currently no consistent or systematic approach in place for challenging negative myths 
and misinformation concerning migrant communities. 
 
PR: Wayland Radio is a community radio predominantly run by volunteers including foreign nationals as staff and 
broadcasting foreign language shows. The radio will have a full time license from August 09 which will allow it to broadcast 
to the market Towns of Watton, Swaffham, Dereham and the isolated rural communities. The station will be utilized to 
promote the forthcoming projects and to expand the number of migrant communities who listen. The use of multi-lingual 
broadcasters will promote participation in their communities and stimulate debate. A project to integrate different 
communities will be coordinated through Wayland Radio, the facilities can also be utilized for Breckland Youth Council to 
record a podcast or assist in a broadcast. Other media tools will also be utilized in the PR of migration and the projects. 
 
Cost - £20,000 
Lead partners – A - Breckland Partnership (LSP), B – EDP,  C – B. Part (LSP) 
Key partners – Wayland Radio, Eastern Daily Press, Community Leaders, Local Employers, Mid Norfolk Association, 
META, Project Amigos, Breckland Partnership, Religious organisations and Breckland Council. 
 
4. Community Engagement 
  
Description – A range of highly engaging and interactive events will be co-ordinated to stimulate discussion, aid 
understanding, develop positive PR, integrate communities and partners and they will also serve to promote the other 
portfolio of migration projects.  
 
‘We Share the Same Sky’ - District wide tour of the production performing to young people, local employers, partner 
agencies such as Police, Primary Care Trust, Children’s Services, and Community representatives in all 5 towns of 
Breckland and delivering structured breakout sessions / discussions after each performance. The Issues to be addressed 
are the misconceptions of migrant workers, refugees and others that come to the UK, real stories and experiences of 
migrant workers, refugees and others that come to the UK. 

‘NEAD Project’ - NEAD’s stated aims are to: show the links that exist between people throughout the world; raise 
awareness about inequalities in our world and increase understanding of their causes; and, promote ways in which people 
can take action to create a more just and sustainable world. NEAD aims to work locally for global justice and equality. The 
project will involve schools and consider issues in relation to migration. This will be a project which takes place in a number 
of schools using workshops, this will be the first project organised through the LSP and it will therefore develop a further 
partnership arrangement. 
 
Cost - £20,000 
Lead partners - Breckland Partnership and NEAD  
Key partners – NEAD, Secondary Schools, Town Councils, Youth Clubs, Churches, Local Employers, Mid Norfolk 
association, META, SIMPLE, Project Amigos, CAB, Area Partnerships, Members, Norfolk County Council and other 
districts. 
 

 Geographical coverage 
 
Links with neighbouring authorities 
There will be opportunities to develop further links with a wide range of partner agencies both within and outside of the 
district. Due to the location of the Thetford Citizen Shop it is anticipated that it will attract visitors from neighbouring areas 
including South Norfolk, King’s Lynn and West Norfolk and Suffolk. The Citizen Bus will also visit the borders of other 
districts including North Norfolk and this may present opportunities to link directly to other authorities. In terms of scalability, 
the projects can be expanded and incorporate other districts or across the County(s). 28



 
Sharing and learning 
Presentations and workshops offered to LSP Network and County Strategic Partnership and other key partnership network 
groups and meetings. Disseminate information through a wide range of media tools and publicity of events both internally 
and externally. Produce project reports with a user friendly evaluation of the individual aspects of each project and with 
clearly defined outcomes and delivery. Share best practice and the lessons learned within the County and beyond. Web 
links via Norfolk County Council website and District websites together with statutory organisations and voluntary sector 
partners across the County. There will be open access to documents and information throughout the project. The projects 
methodology, data, outcomes, costs etc will be freely available to all organisations. It is anticipated that the projects will 
form a best practice model in a rural setting that can be built upon to roll out elsewhere in the country. 
 

Project Outputs  

 
Citizen’s Shop and Mobile Bus 
 

• 5 highly trained and dedicated staff working as professional Service Connectors for all communities. 

• 8% increase in overall score of National Indicator 1 by the end of the funding period (April 11). 

• 75% overall target for positive interaction with the migrant communities. 

• Deliver a comprehensive range of services to customers targeting a high migrant and vulnerable proportion in district. 

• Quarterly reports to The Breckland Partnership LSP Board and Go East/CLG. 

Training and Skills 
 

• 5 Service Connectors trained to provide professional advice and guidance for all communities. 

• 120 trained frontline staff and partners in positive interaction and effective service delivery to migrant communities. 

• 100 migrants receiving roles and responsibilities training. 

• 10 migrants becoming active volunteers leading to ‘Active Citizenship’ 

• 8 number of employers / groups taking on migrant volunteers 

• 200 persons receiving language skills and English classes completed across the district. 

• 2000 persons across the district completing the E-learning tool  

• 1000 viewing the DVD produced by young people, migrant communities and Breckland Youth Council. 
 
Communications 
 

• Active engagement of community representatives with the Local Multi Community Forum through the LSP. 

• 10 projects receiving discreet funding and support from the Local Multi Community Forum. 

• Increased number of press articles promoting a positive message in relation to migrant communities. 

• 1000 number of direct web hits on the project web pages which are promoted. 
 
Engagement 
 

• 5 school performances during school hours (one in each market Town) 

• 1 evening performance (employers, district and county reps, migrants, press) 

• Between 400-600 people to watch the performances in total. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Expected Outcomes 

Overall Outcomes and Vision for Project 
 

• A comprehensive range of basic citizen services to the migrant and vulnerable communities in rural areas. 

• To embed improved provision in all partners agencies to deliver sustainable, professional, integrated services. 

• To address the transitional impacts of migration in an innovative, cost-effective and integrated approach for all. 

• To build on existing good practice by The Breckland Partnership (LSP) and the Breckland partners and communities. 

• To foster the adoption of a new attitude to public services, thereby creating an efficient and dynamic environment. 

• Introducing schemes to gather and analyse information about the needs of different categories of communities through 
platforms for consultation, exchange of information between stakeholders and targeted surveys. 

• The partnership arrangements contributes to strengthening relationships of trust, exchange of experiences and 
recommendations, feelings of co-responsibility, and the increased participation of different partners.  

• Migrant organisations are involved as advisors in the setup and functioning of each of the 4 projects  

• The five services most affected (community safety, housing, children and young people, public health, skills) will be 
directly and/or indirectly targeted through the portfolio of projects. 

• The projects outlined in this proposal replicate the findings in the report ‘Migrant Workers in the East of England 29



Executive Summary Autumn 2005. Namely: 1) migrant workers’ access to information, 2) migrant workers’ access to 
services 3) housing issues 4) skills issues related to language skills and difficulties in gaining re-qualifications 5) 
regional research in relation to the level of information about migrant working. 

 
Citizen’s Shop and Mobile Bus 
 

• Provide integrated solutions to the problems faced by both migrant citizens and all other communities, by providing all 
the services required to meet their needs, at a single point of contact.  

• Training of specialised staff to sort the various migrant and community requirements in order to better route users (by 
evaluating their queries and issues and verifying their documentation), thus contributing to speeding up the required 
procedures and access to services. 

• A holistic, comprehensive model - Citizen’s Shop and Bus contributes to improving efficiency in coordinating different 
actions and services and simplifies both access and resolution. 

• Contributes to minimising the distrust from communities accessing the services. 

• Serve to enhance a climate of cooperation and consultation between all of the stakeholders: Local Government, partner 
agencies, migrants, migrant-led community groups, employers, trade unions and the public.  

• Ensuring that integration is a two-way process, where the receiving society actively engages in adaptation. 

• A Citizen’s Shop and Bus will ease pressure on mainstream services and provide for better pooling of resources and 
information between organisations with relevant expertise in the area and to make efficiency cost-savings. 

• Engaging companies in debates on integration and linking governmental programmes with companies’ corporate social 
responsibility programmes. 

 
Training and Skills 
 

• To narrow the gap between Public Administration services and migrant citizens, namely by introducing socio-cultural 
mediators, and fostering cultural, language-orientated and emotional involvement among the staff. 

• Training specialised staff to oversee the various migrant and community requirements in order to better route users (by 
evaluating their issues and verifying their documentation), thus contributing to speeding up the required procedures. 

• Recruit learning champions from migrant communities and deliver a tailored package of Pre-ESOL and ESOL. 

• Developing training programmes and vocational upgrading that will strengthen the motivation and performance of public 
workers, private sector, voluntary sector, community groups and all Breckland communities. 

• Contribute to minimising the distrust from all the communities accessing the services. 

• Ensuring that integration is a two-way process, where the receiving society actively engages in adaptation. 

• Engaging companies in debates on integration and linking governmental programmes with companies’ corporate social 
responsibility programmes. 

• Integrating intercultural competence into both the recruitment process and training policies. 

• Reduction in the number of crime, homelessness and negative reports in relation to migrant workers. 
 
Communications 
 

• The active participation of community representatives from all communities will build cohesion and ownership. 

• The Breckland Partnership will act as a co-coordinating role for the migration projects ensuring professional delivery, 
value for money, outcomes, and a full evaluation report for each project.  

• Significant contributions to the dissemination of a positive message to the receiving society in relation to migration; and 
of a positive image of the State to the migrant population. 

• A decrease in the negative PR and media coverage (myths and legends) surrounding migrant communities. 

• Ensuring that integration is a two-way process, where the receiving society actively engages in adaptation. 

• Engaging businesses in debates on integration and linking governmental programmes with companies’ corporate social 
responsibility programmes. 

 
Community Engagement 
 

• Increased understanding and engagement of migrant communities and their needs, background and contributions. 

• A positive message disseminated to all those attending and those not through media coverage and workshops. 

• The promotion of the other projects to assist in their success in delivering positive outcomes and outputs. 

• Development of further partnership working with partners, schools, businesses, and across boundaries. 

Performance Management  
 

 Monitoring and evaluating 
The projects will be measured according to the ‘numbers’ utilizing the services and through partner feedback. The projects 
will be monitored and evaluated by the Breckland Partnership and the lead and assisting partner agencies. Evaluation 
reports will be completed for each part of the 4 projects. The Local Multi Agency Forum will act as a ‘critical friend’ and the 
diverse community groups attending will act as a co-coordinating role for the migration projects ensuring there is 
professional delivery and sustainable outcomes. Customer satisfaction  forms completed by all participants and partners.  
Tailor projects to the needs of the audience through consultation. Workshops for a county wide audience to share and 
evaluate.  
 

 Exit strategy 30



 This funding provides a unique opportunity to trial in-depth engagement and the delivery of services in an innovative and 
customer focused way. A successful trial over the two year period should lead to the realignment and focus of existing 
resources, thus allowing the service to continue post project funding without risk and disruption to the current service that is 
offered.  If successful the proposal (trial) can readily be replicated in similar rural local authority areas. 

  

Innovative Practice 

 
Citizen’s Shop (Portuguese Consulate Model) There is an opportunity to invite private companies or entrepreneurs to set 
up branches or businesses catering specifically for One-Stop-Shop users; in order that time spent waiting to use a service 
can be spent fruitfully. There is a further cost-saving aspect to making space available for private services in that this can 
be rented out at a fee to the private entities involved. (e.g. Post Office, ATM, Money Transfer, Internet Access, 
Photocopying, Passport Booth.  This approach is informed by recent research in South Lincolnshire that highlighted the 
difficulties migrant communities have in accessing private sector facilities, e.g. bank accounts, and builds on the standard 
one stop shop model by engaging key local business in the delivery platform. 
 
Citizen’s Mobile Bus (rural communities) This funding application has a broad portfolio of projects that will capture a 
wider audience across different generations, backgrounds, cultures, areas, interests and the sharing of the data and 
outcomes will be disseminated across the region and beyond. It will deliver the projects across the funding period to ensure 
positive media coverage through a variety of media resources.  Furthermore, the ‘INTI One-Stop-Shop Project: A New 
Answer for Immigrant Integration’ project, which informs this proposal, will be extended by a mobile provision that satisfies 
the needs of particular rural communities. 
 
These four projects will contribute to the integration and access to services for all communities by developing a number of 
instruments that should guarantee accessibility, equal treatment and the provision of coherent information. 
 

Total grant required £ 510,000 over funding period 2009-2011 

2009 2010   Annual grant required if project is for more than 1 
year £350,000 £160,000 

Expected start date July 2009 

Expected date of completion July 2011 

Name:   Mark Fretwell  
LSP Officer 
Breckland Council 

Signature  

Application completed by  1 

Date 24/03/09 

Name Trevor Holden 
Chief Executive 
Breckland Council 

Signature  

Application endorsed by  2 

Date 24/03/09 

 

31


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7a Pride in Breckland Project
	7d Environmental Project
	9 Project Rainbow - Watton
	12 Migration Impacts Funding

